
  VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Monday, November 14, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 
40 East Center Avenue 

Village Hall Board Room 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. CONSIDERATION OF THE OCTOBER 24, 2016 VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES  

 
4. NON-AGENDA ITEMS AND VISITORS 
 

The Village President and Board of Trustees allocate fifteen (15) minutes during this item for those 
individuals who would like the opportunity to address the Village Board of Trustees on any matter not listed 
on the agenda.  Each person addressing the Village Board of Trustees is asked to limit their comments to a 
maximum of five (5) minutes. 
 

5. VILLAGE BOARD SETS THE ORDER OF THE MEETING 
 

The Village President and Board of Trustees will entertain requests from anyone present on the order of 
business to be conducted during the Village Board Meeting. 
 

6. VILLAGE FINANCE REPORT 
 

a) Warrant Report for November 1-15, 2016 and October 2016 Payroll Expenditures 
b) October 2016 Financial Report 

 
7. VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
8. VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
9. VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
 

a) Appointment of Julie Wehmeyer to the Architectural Board of Review 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

10. ACCEPTANCE OF THE CORRESPONDENCE 
 

Please note all correspondence was delivered to the Village Board of Trustees in the Informational Reports 
on October 21, 28 and November 4, 2016 
 



Board of Trustees Regular Meeting – November 14, 2016 
 

Page 2 

11. SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO HUNTER 
FITNESS AND NUTRITION, INC. TO OPERATE A PHYSICAL FITNESS FACILITY AT 37 
SHERWOOD TERRACE, UNITS 132-133 IN THE VILLAGE’S L-1 LIGHT INDUSTRY DISTRICT 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
12. A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF ROCK SALT FOR THE PURPOSE OF SNOW 

AND ICE REMOVAL FROM COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA, INC THROUGH THE ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CENTRAL MANAGEMENT SERVICE JOINT PURCHASING PROGRAM 
 

13. A RESOLUTION ESTIMATING THE AMOUNT OF THE ANNUAL AGGREGATE 2016 PROPERTY 
TAX LEVY 

 
14. TRUSTEE’S REPORT 
 
15. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
16. CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 24, 2016 EXECUTIVE SESSION 

MEETING 
 

17. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

R. Drew Irvin 
Village Administrator 

 
The Village of Lake Bluff is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting 
and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding accessibility of the 
meeting or the facilities, are requested to contact R. Drew Irvin, Village Administrator, at 234-0774 or TDD number 234-2153 promptly to allow the Village of Lake 
Bluff to make reasonable accommodations. 
 
 



  
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 24, 2016 
                                                                                                          

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Village President O’Hara called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Lake Bluff Village Hall Board Room, 
and Village Clerk Aaron Towle called the roll.  
 
The following were present: 
 
Village President:  Kathleen O’Hara 
 
Trustees:   Barbara Ankenman 

Steve Christensen 
Mark Dewart 
John Josephitis    

     
Absent:    Eric Grenier, Trustee 
    William Meyer, Trustee 
 
Also Present:  Aaron Towle, Village Clerk 

Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 
Peter Friedman, Village Attorney 

    Susan Griffin, Finance Director      
    Jeff Hansen, Village Engineer 
    David Belmonte, Police Chief 
    Jake Terlap, Public Works Superintendent 
    Brandon Stanick, Assistant to the Village Administrator (A to VA) 
   

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
President O’Hara led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. AWARDS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 
President O’Hara read a Proclamation honoring Lake Bluff Resident, Businessman and World War II veteran 
Robert Bruce and presented him with a framed copy of the proclamation.  
 
Mr. Bruce thanked the Village Board for their recognition. 
 

4. CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES 
 
Trustee Christensen moved to approve the September 26, 2016 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes 
as presented.  Trustee Ankenman seconded the motion.  The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

5. NON-AGENDA ITEMS AND VISITORS  
 
President O’Hara stated the Village President and Board of Trustees allocate fifteen minutes for those 
individuals who would like the opportunity to address the Village Board on any matter not listed on the agenda.  



Board Trustees Regular Meeting October 24, 2016 
 

2 
 

Each person addressing the Village Board of Trustees is asked to limit their comments to a maximum of five 
(5) minutes. 
 
There were no requests to address the Board. 
 

6. VILLAGE BOARD SETS THE ORDER OF THE MEETING 
 
At the request of those present, Trustee Dewart moved to take Agenda Items #13, #16 and then return to the 
regular order of the meeting.  Trustee Josephitis seconded the motion.  The motion passed on a unanimous 
voice vote. 
 

7. ITEM #13 – A RESOLUTION HONORING THE PUBLIC SERVICE OF CATHERINE LEMIEUX 
 
President O’Hara read a resolution honoring the public service of Catherine Lemieux and presented her with 
a framed copy of the resolution.  
 
Ms. Lemieux thanked the Village Board and Lake Bluff Police Department for the opportunity to serve on the 
Police Pension Fund Board. 
 
Trustee Ankenman moved to adopt the resolution. Trustee Dewart seconded the motion.  The motion passed 
on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

8. ITEM #16 – AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO HUNTER FITNESS 
AND NUTRITION, INC TO OPERATE A PHYSICAL FITNESS FACILITY AT 37 SHERWOOD 
TERRACE, UNITS 132-133 IN THE VILLAGE’S L-1 LIGHT INDUSTRY DISTRICT 
 
President O’Hara reported on September 20, 2016 the Village received a complete zoning application from 
Hunter Fitness and Nutrition, Inc. (Petitioner) requesting a Special Use Permit (SUP) to operate a physical 
fitness facility at 37 Sherwood Terrace, Units 132-133 (Property).   The Petitioner will offer physical fitness 
services in small groups (8 to 16 people) and offer personal training, specialty training, and special classes 
(boot camps, seniors, etc.).  At the conclusion of the public hearing on October 19th the Plan Commission and 
Zoning Board of Appeals (PCZBA) unanimously recommended the Village Board approve the request for a 
SUP to allow the Petitioner to operate a physical fitness facility at the Property pursuant to operations outlined 
in the zoning application.  She further reported earlier this year the Village Board approved an amendment to 
the Zoning Code allowing physical fitness facilities as a special use in the L-1 Zoning District and granted a 
SUP to Vlad’s Gym, a personal trainer operating at 910 Sherwood Drive, as well as Lyft Health and Fitness at 
960 North Shore Drive.  

 
As there were no comments from the Board, Trustee Josephitis moved to approve first reading of the ordinance. 
Trustee Ankenman seconded the motion.  The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

9. ITEM #7A – WARRANT REPORT FOR OCTOBER 1-31, 2016 AND SEPTEMBER 2016 PAYROLL 
EXPENDITURES 

 
President O’Hara reported expenditure of Village funds for payment of invoices in the amount of $297,541.24 
for October 1-15, 2016 and in the amount of $161,728.72 for October 16-31, 2016.  She further reported 
expenditure of Village funds for payroll in the amount of $379,693.59 for September 2016. 
 
As such, the total expenditures for this period is in the amount of $838,963.55 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting October 24, 2016 
 

3 
 

As there were no questions from the Board, Trustee Dewart moved to approve the Warrant Report.   Trustee 
Josephitis seconded the motion.  The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (4) Ankenman, Christensen, Dewart and Josephitis 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent:  (2) Grenier and Meyer 

 
10. ITEM #7B – SEPTEMBER 2016 FINANCE REPORT 

 
At President O’Hara’s request, Finance Director Susan Griffin provided a brief summary of the September 
2016 Finance Report highlighting major revenue sources and expenditures for the period.   

 
 Sales tax revenue for May-July 2016 of $844,000 is $161,000 or 24% greater than May-July 2015;  
 Home rule sales tax of $282,000 for May-July 2016 is $107,000 or 61% greater than May-July 2015;  
 Income tax revenue of $284,000 for May-October 2016 is 15% lower than the same period in 2015; and 
 Building permit revenue is $239,000 and is $18,000 or 7% less than May-September 2015. 

 
Finance Director Griffin stated Staff continues to closely monitor the actions in Springfield and assess the 
implications to the Village of potential changes in State-shared revenue allocations, property tax limitation 
changes and pension reform. 
 
Trustee Dewart moved to accept the Finance Report. Trustee Christensen seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed on a unanimous voice vote. 

 
11. ITEM #8 – VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

 
Village Administrator Irvin had no report. 
 

12. ITEM #9 – VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
Village Attorney Friedman had no report. 
 

13. ITEM #10 – VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
 
President O’Hara reported on the ongoing Village strategic planning process. 
 

14. ITEM #11 AND #12 – CONSENT AGENDA 
 
President O’Hara introduced the following Consent Agenda items for consideration:   
 

11. Correspondence Delivered in the September 23, 30 and October 7 and 14, 2016 Informational Reports; 
and 

12. Second Reading of an Ordinance Granting a Variation from the Village’s Side Yard Setback 
Regulations (311 E. Center Avenue) 

 
Trustee Josephitis moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Trustee Dewart seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (4) Christensen, Dewart, Josephitis and Ankenman 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent:  (2) Grenier and Meyer 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting October 24, 2016 
 

4 
 

15. ITEM #14 – A RESOLUTION APPROVING A REVISED SITE PLAN TO INSTALL A 
GENERATOR AT 925 SHERWOOD DRIVE (NORTH SHORE DERMATOLOGY) 
 
President O’Hara reported North Shore Dermatology proposes to install a generator on the east side of the 
building located at 925 Sherwood Drive. The generator will be located between the driveway and the building, 
immediately north of the electrical service. The generator is 29” tall, 48” wide, and 25” deep.  The landscape 
bushes will be re-arranged as necessary to screen the generator.  She further reported the Architectural Board 
of Review conducted a public hearing on October 4, 2016 and voted 4-0 to recommend approval of the 
proposed changes to the Site Plan. 
 
As there were no comments from the Board, Trustee Josephitis moved to adopt the resolution. Trustee 
Ankenman seconded the motion.   The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

16. ITEM #15 – A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT WITH MICHELS PIPE SERVICES FOR THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 2016-
2017 SANITARY SEWER LINING PROJECT 
 
President O’Hara reported on October 19, 2016, bids were opened for the Village’s 2016-2017 Sanitary Sewer 
Lining Project.   A total of five bids were received, with the lowest responsive bid of $58,904.50 submitted by 
Michels Pipe Services of Brownsville, Wisconsin.   The Village’s FY16 Proposed Budget included $85,000 
for the lining of sanitary sewer segments identified in the 2014 Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey as in need 
of lining and televising of additional sanitary sewers in the East Terrace.  The Village originally bid out the 
project for construction late in FY16.   She further reported the bids received exceeded the budgeted amount 
by approximately $43,000, so it was not taken to the Village Board.  Following the opening of the original 
bids, the Village contracted separately for the sewer televising and cleaning portion of the project at a cost of 
$13,174 and authorized an additional $4,150 to our engineering consultant to prepare the documents for the 
re-bidding of the sewer lining.       
 
President O’Hara reported it is anticipated that the total project cost to complete the sanitary sewer lining is 
$99,703; this includes $19,625 for engineering, $13,174 for televising and cleaning, and an $8,000 allowance 
for pipe repairs that may be necessary during construction. She further reported the Village Engineer is 
recommending that an award be made to Michels Pipe Services for the low bid amount of $58,904.50. While 
this project was not included in the current fiscal plan, there are adequate funds available in the contingency 
fund of the FY17 Budget to complete this important infrastructure improvement.   
 
Village Engineer Jeff Hansen stated the bids received during the spring were higher than expected and savings 
from the Municipal Partnering Initiative bidding process allowed the Village to re-bid the project.   
 
In response to questions from Trustee Ankenman, Village Engineer Hansen stated the low bid amount does 
not include all the work associated with the project. The sewer lining repairs will occur on Wimbledon Court 
west of the homes located behind the heavily wooded area and this project will have no impact on the East 
Terrace flooding issues. 
 
As there were no further comments from the Board, Trustee Ankenman moved to adopt the resolution. Trustee 
Christensen seconded the motion.   The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (4) Dewart, Josephitis, Ankenman and Christensen 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent:  (2) Grenier and Meyer 
 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting October 24, 2016 
 

5 
 

17. ITEM #17 – TRUSTEE’S REPORT 
  
There was no Trustee’s report. 
 

18. ITEM #18 – EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
At 7:25 p.m. Trustee Ankenman moved to enter into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing Land 
Acquisition (5 ILCS 120/2(c)(5)), Personnel (5 ILCS 120/2(c)(2)) and Executive Session Minutes (5 ILCS 
120/2(c)(21)).  Trustee Dewart seconded the motion.  The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (4) Ankenman, Christensen, Dewart and Josephitis 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent:  (2) Grenier and Meyer 
 
There being no further business to discuss, Trustee Ankenman moved to adjourn out of executive session.  
Trustee Christensen seconded the motion and the motion passed on a unanimous voice vote at 8:53 p.m. 
 

19. ITEM #19 – CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 26, 2016 EXECUTIVE 
SESSION MEETING 
 
Trustee Dewart moved to approve the September 26, 2016 Executive Session Meeting Minutes as presented.  
Trustee Ankenman seconded the motion.  The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

20. ITEM #20 – ADJOURNMENT 
                                                                              
Trustee Dewart moved to adjourn the regular meeting.  Trustee Christensen seconded the motion and the 
motion passed on a unanimous voice vote.  The meeting adjourned at 8:54 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
______________________________   _____________________________ 
R. Drew Irvin      Aaron Towle 
Village Administrator     Village Clerk 



























































VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

        Agenda Item: 6b 
 
 
Subject: 

 
OCTOBER 2016 FINANCIAL REPORT                      

 
Action Requested: 

 
RECEIPT OF FINANCIAL REPORT (Voice Vote) 

 
Originated By: 

 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

 
Referred To:  

 
VILLAGE BOARD 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request: 
 
Attached for your consideration is the October 2016 Financial Report. 
 
Highlights of this report are: 

 Sales tax revenue for May-July 2016 is of $844k is $161k or 24% greater than 
May-July 2015;  

 Home rule sales tax of $282k for May-July 2016 is $107k or 61% greater than 
May-July 2015;  

 Income tax revenue of $284k for May-October 2016 is 15% lower than the same 
period in 2015; 

 Building permit revenue is $281k and is $62k or 18% less than May-October 
2015;  

 Expenditures are consistent with the budget; and 
 We continue to closely monitor the actions in Springfield and assess the 

implications to the Village of potential changes in State-shared revenue 
allocations, property tax limitation changes, or pension reform become law. 

 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 

 October 2016 Financial Report 
 
 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation:  Acceptance of Report. 
 
 
Date Referred to Village Board: 11/14/2016 
 



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:    Village President and Board of Trustees 
    Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 
 
FROM:    Susan M. Griffin, Director of Finance 
 
DATE:    November 4, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  October 2016 Monthly Report 
 
Treasury Report – Exhibit A 
Attached is the two page Treasury Report for October 2016.  The total cash and investments in the 
treasury for the governmental and water funds are $11,299,518 plus $9,123,219 for the Police 
Pension Fund.   
 
Investment Report – Exhibit B 
Attached is the Investment Report for the month ending October 31, 2016.  The par value plus 
interest credited to the CD’s for the governmental and Water fund short‐term investments is 
$2,737,384.  The Village investments are managed within the guidelines of the Village’s Cash 
Management and Investment Policy.   
 
Budget Analysis Report – Exhibit C  
Attached is the Budget Analysis Report for October 2016. The revenues in Exhibit C reflect actual and 
estimated receipts.  Below is more specific information about the major revenues and expenditures 
by fund.  The General and Water Funds revenues and expenditures that exceed or are under 20% of 
the prior year amounts have been highlighted on Exhibit C.     
 
General Fund Revenues: 
 
Property Tax revenue is received predominately in June and September as the taxes are due by the 
first week of those months.  The total Village tax extension for the 2015 property taxes (received in 
FY17) is $3,193,440 with the General Fund receiving 69% or $2,195,529 of the monies.  The IMRF, 
FICA and Police Pension Funds receive the balance of the revenues of $997,811.  The Police Pension 
property taxes are recorded as a revenue in the General Fund and a transfer out of the General Fund 
into the Police Pension Fund in compliance with GASB.   
 
The 2015 property tax extension, received from May‐December 2016 and recorded as revenue in 
FY2017, of $3,193,440 is $43,744 or 1.4% more than the 2014 extension.  For the first time since 
2009 the Village’s EAV grew increasing by 8.8% to $521.832 million.   
 
Sales Tax Revenue (non‐home rule 1% and local use tax) is shown in table format on the next page 
with monthly revenues for FY17, FY16, and FY15.  May‐July 2016 revenue of $843,948 is $160,970 or 
24% greater than May‐July 2015.  The revenue for FY16 is $2,791,899 which is $258,653 or 10% 
greater than FY15.  The FY15 sales tax of $2,533,246 is $272,370 or 12% greater than FY14. The chart 
on page 3 shows the non‐home rule sales tax by month for the calendar years 2011 through July 
2016.  August‐October 2016 numbers have not been reported to the municipalities at this time. 
Indications are that the August sales tax numbers will reflect a decline due to a drop in auto sales. 
 
 
 



October 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 2 

 
 

 
Liability Month 

FY2016‐17 
Revenue 
(A) 

FY2015‐16 
Revenue  
(B) 

$ Change 
FY16 to 
FY17 (A‐B) 

FY2014‐15 
Revenue  
(C) 

$ Change 
FY15‐ FY16  
(B‐C) 

May 2016  $  281,889  $  230,253   $ 51,636  $  214,330   $ 15,923 

June   $  305,734  $  221,167   $ 84,567  $  207,740   $ 13,427 

July  $  256,325  $  231,558   $ 24,767  $  235,549  ($   3,991) 

August     $  237,694    $  210,817   $ 26,877 

September     $  229,733    $  189,923   $ 39,810 

October     $  243,811    $  191,588   $ 52,223 

November     $  261,349    $  216,524   $ 44,825 

December     $  274,963    $  229,680   $ 45,283 

January 2017    $  207,309    $  201,909   $   5,400 

February    $  195,430    $  184,808   $ 10,622 

March     $  235,774    $  219,534   $ 16,240 

April     $  222,858    $  230,844  ($  7,986) 

FY Total   $843,948  $2,791,899   $160,970  $2,533,246   $ 258,653 

FY Monthly 
Average  

 
$ 281,316 

 
  $232,658 

   
  $211,104 

 

 
Home rule sales tax became effective January 1, 2006 with actual receipts shown below.  By statute 
this 1% tax does not apply to food/medicines and titled products such as autos. May‐July 2016 home 
rule sales tax is $107,025 or 61% higher than the May‐July 2015. The home rule sales tax revenue for 
FY16 of $786,893 is $242,621 or 45% higher than FY15.  The FY15 home rule sales tax of $544,272 is 
$18,839 or 3.6% more than FY14 revenue. The chart on page 4 shows the home rule sales tax by 
month for the calendar years 2011 through July 2016.  August‐October 2016 numbers are not 
available at this time. 
 

Home Rule Sales 
Tax By Liability 
Month 

FY2016‐17 
Revenue 
(A) 

FY2015‐16 
Revenue 
(B) 

$ Change 
FY16 to FY17 
(A‐B) 

FY2014‐15 
Revenue 
(C) 

$ Change 
FY15 to 
FY16 (B‐C) 

May 2016   $  99,436   $ 60,325   $ 39,111   $ 51,864   $    8,461 

June    $111,112   $ 55,143   $ 55,969   $ 53,809   $    1,334 

July    $  71,001   $ 59,056   $ 11,945   $ 45,382   $  13,674 

August      $ 65,060     $ 47,867   $  17,193 

September      $ 69,262     $ 44,378   $  24,884 

October      $ 71,862     $ 49,349   $  22,513 

November      $ 72,579     $ 44,780   $  27,799 

December     $ 88,604     $ 51,229   $  37,375 

January 2017      $ 56,058     $ 40,487   $  15,571 

February      $ 55,196     $ 30,334   $  24,862 

March      $ 73,149     $ 37,121   $  36,028 

April      $ 60,599     $ 47,672   $  12,927 

FY Total   $281,549  $786,893   $107,025  $544,272   $242,621 

FY Monthly 
Average 

 
$  93,850 

 
$  65,574 

   
$  45,356 

 



October 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 3 

 
 

 
 
 
 

2011 

2011 

2012 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2014 

2016 

2015 

2015 

$100
$110
$120
$130
$140
$150
$160
$170
$180
$190
$200
$210
$220
$230
$240
$250
$260
$270
$280
$290
$300
$310
$320

Thousands
SALES TAX REVENUE

(not including Home Rule Sales Tax)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2016 2015



October 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 4 

 
 

 
 

2011 
2012 

2012 

2013 

2013 

2014 

2014 

2016 

2015 

2015 

$25
$28
$31
$34
$37
$40
$43
$46
$49
$52
$55
$58
$61
$64
$67
$70
$73
$76
$79
$82
$85
$88
$91
$94
$97

$100
$103
$106
$109
$112
$115
$118

Thousands

HOME RULE SALES TAX REVENUE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2016 2015



October 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 5 

Other Taxes category encompasses state income, personal property replacement, and the demolition tax.   
 
The actual income tax revenue for May‐October 2016 at $283,518 is 15% less than the same period in 2015.  
May 2015‐April 2016 (FY16) at $609,807 is 8.8% higher than FY15 at $560,382.  Below is a chart showing the 
income tax revenues by month from January 2012‐September 2016.   

 
 
According to the Illinois Municipal League, the 36% jump in the May 2013 receipts were an aberration caused 
partly by individuals and corporations reporting capital gains income in anticipation of significant changes in 
Federal tax policy.  The revenue for May 2015 is $102,570 or 5% more than June 2013.  Again this could be an 
increase in capital gains. 
 
The following page shows a bar graph of the income tax revenue by fiscal year for FY09‐FY16. Fiscal year 2016 
total revenue of $609,807 is the highest year in over 20 years.  However, this source of revenue is one that is 
likely to decline if the State revises the formula for sharing income tax revenue with local municipalities. No 
word yet with any conclusive plans regarding changes to the municipal share as the State still has not finalized 
a budget since FY2015. 

 
 

CY2012

CY2013

CY2014

CY2015

CY2016

 $‐
 $5,000

 $10,000
 $15,000
 $20,000
 $25,000
 $30,000
 $35,000
 $40,000
 $45,000
 $50,000
 $55,000
 $60,000
 $65,000
 $70,000
 $75,000
 $80,000
 $85,000
 $90,000
 $95,000

 $100,000
 $105,000
 $110,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

STATE‐SHARED INCOME TAX REVENUE

CY2012
CY2013

CY2014
CY2015

CY2016

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

FY2009 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016
FISCAL YEAR

STATE SHARED INCOME TAX



October 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 6 

Utility Taxes category is comprised of a tax on electric, natural gas, and telecommunications usage.  The tax is 
5% of the distribution, supply, furnishing or sale of natural gas and electricity consumed within the Village with 
the electric tax being based on tiers of kilowatt hours usage.  The telecommunications tax is 5% of the gross 
charge for the act or privilege of originating or receiving telecommunications in the Village and all services 
rendered in connection therewith.   
 
North Shore Gas utility tax revenues are received quarterly in June (for February‐April), September (for May‐
July), December (for August‐October), and March (for November‐January).  Below is a chart showing the 
natural gas tax revenues by quarter for the past 6 years. 
 

 
 
The February‐April 2014 quarter amount of $107,763 was 68% greater than the same quarter in 2013. This is 
attributed to the increase in natural gas consumption for building heating because of the subzero 
temperatures experienced in the Midwest during the winter of 2014. This cooler weather pattern is assumed 
to be partly the reason for the May‐July 2014 amount of $51,521 which is the highest amount received for the 
summer quarter since at least 1996.  May‐July 2015 tax of $30,411 is consistent with the same quarters in 
previous years, except for 2014.  The August‐October 2015 tax of $20,059 is slightly less than the prior year.  
The November 2015‐January 2016 tax of $37,234 is 37% less than the same period the prior year consistent 
with the low fuel prices and mild winter weather. Below is a table showing the natural gas tax revenue by fiscal 
year with the dollar and percentage change from the prior year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ComEd electric tax actual revenue of $144,511 for May‐September 2016 (FY17) is 10% higher than the 
$131,751 for the same period in 2015. FY16 at $310,025 is 0.6% greater than $308,147 for FY15. FY15 of 
$308,147 is $11,309 or 3.5% less than the $319,456 revenue for FY14.  The FY14 revenue was $9,178 or 2.8% 
less than FY13 revenue of $328,634.   
 

2016

$51,521 

$107,763 

$0
$10,000
$20,000
$30,000
$40,000
$50,000
$60,000
$70,000
$80,000
$90,000

$100,000
$110,000

May‐July Aug‐Oct Nov‐Jan Feb‐Apr

R
e
ve
n
u
e
 $

Natural Gas Utility Tax Revenue

FY17 FY16 FY15 FY14 FY13 FY12

Fiscal 
Year 

Total Natural Gas 
Tax Revenue 

$ Change 
from PY 

% Change 
from PY 

16  $144,777  ($66,851)  (32%) 

15  $211,628  ($  6,501)    (3%) 

14  $218,129   $71,057    48% 

13  $147,072   $      128      ‐‐‐ 

12  $146,944  ($24,832)   (14%) 



October 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 7 

Actual telecomm taxes are remitted to the Village by the State; actual receipts lag about 3‐4 months from the 
liability period. The May‐July 2016 (FY17) revenue of $51,759 is $4,272 or 8% less than the May‐July 2015 of 
$56,031.  The FY16 revenue of $222,923 is 18.5% less than the FY15 revenue of $273,612.  In April 2013 the 
State notified the Village that a large telecommunications carrier was ordered to seek refunds from the states 
on behalf of customers that were charged telecomm taxes on transactions that were not properly taxable 
under federal and state laws.  Illinois municipalities were advised that a significant portion of the State refunds 
involved proceeds that were distributed to local governments. The Village’s portion of the recovery of 
distributions was $32,792.  While the State recovered these funds over an equal amount each month for a year 
during FY15, the Village reduced its FY14 telecommunications tax revenue by this amount. After this 
adjustment, FY14 revenue is $217,745; $55,867 or 25.7% less than FY13 revenue of $273,612. The FY15 
revenue is $231,348 compared to $217,745 for FY14 (after taking into account the refundable adjustment 
noted above) which represents a 6.2% increase.   
 
Below is a chart showing the telecommunications (from various sources), ComEd electric, and the North Shore 
natural gas utility taxes by fiscal year.  Upon review of this chart, it is clear that all three of these revenue 
sources are well below their pre‐2008‐2009 amounts. Given the more efficient appliances, consumer 
conservation habits, and the lower price of fuel, projections are that this source will not likely rise to those 
levels in the next five years. 

 
 
Building Permit revenue for May‐October 2016 is $280,938 compared to $343,485 for the same period in 
2016.  This represents $62,547 or 18% less revenue in FY17 than FY16 due to a building permit for a residence 
on Ravine Ave with a construction value of $2.48 million which resulted in about $40k more in building permit 
fees in July 2015 and a $29k permit fee in October 2015 for the Knauz Motors exterior remodeling project.  
FY15 ended the year 113% more than the receipts for FY14 due to the Target development, Heinen’s 
remodeling of the Dominick’s store and two large residences in Lansdowne.   
 
On the next page is a graph of the building permit revenues since FY09 through FY2016 with an estimate for 
FY2017.   

North Shore Gas

North Shore Gas

ComEd Electric

ComEd Electric

Telecomm

$140
$150
$160
$170
$180
$190
$200
$210
$220
$230
$240
$250
$260
$270
$280
$290
$300
$310
$320
$330
$340
$350
$360

FY2009 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016

Thousands UTILITY TAX REVENUE
by Type for FY2009-2016

Refund of telecomm taxes due to court ruling



October 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 8 

 
Sewer charge revenue for May‐October 2016 is $77,826 which is $74 more than $77,752 for the same period 
in 2015. The sewer charge is billed at the rate of $1.10 per thousand gallons of water used with a credit during 
the billing months of August‐October for water presumed for lawn irrigation purposes.    
  
General Fund Expenditures: 
The May‐October 2016 expenditures of $4.38 million is $74k lower than the same period in 2015 due to less 
capital outlay from last year netted against an increase in interfund transfers.  A decrease in road repaving 
expenditures this summer accounts for the reduction in the Streets division and Capital category from the 
prior fiscal year‐to‐date. The Fire department expenditures increase is attributed to a timing difference in the 
payment of the ambulance invoice in the amount of $64,821 and the share of the dispatching costs of $56,240 
for the first quarter FY17 calls.  The FY16 service invoices were paid in December 2015.  
 
Interfund transfers are for the Police Pension property taxes, Vehicle Replacement contributions, and the 2012 
Refunding Bonds debt payment. Refunding bond interest is paid in June and December with the principal 
payment in December each year. 
 
Water Sales Revenue:   
The Water sales in dollars for May‐October 2016 is $681,683 compared to $622,224 for the same period in 
2015. This difference of $59,459 is attributed to the rate change effective May 1, 2016 from $6.95 to $7.10 per 
thousand gallons of water consumed in the amount of $12,754, the increase in billed consumption of 6.567 mg 
accounts for $46,629 of the change in revenue, and $76 is applicable to customer charge and hydrant usage 
billings.  Billed consumption was 91.596 million gallons (mg) in May‐October 2016 compared to 85.029 mg in 
May‐October 2015. 
 
Water Purchases Expense: 
This has not been updated as the October water consumption information was not provided to the Village in 
time for this report.  This will be updated and provided to the Board on Monday, November 14th. 
 
Water purchases for May‐September 2016 are 117.546 mg compared to 108.600 mg for May‐September 2015. 
Effective May 1, 2016, CLCJAWA increased the wholesale water rate from $2.68 to $2.73 per 1,000 gallons of 
water purchased.  The increase in water purchased during this period of 8.946 mg accounted for $24,423 in 
cost and the rate increase added $5,430 for a total increase of $29,853 in water purchase expense from 
$291,048 in 2015 to $320,901 in 2016. 
 

 $200
 $250
 $300
 $350
 $400
 $450
 $500
 $550
 $600
 $650
 $700
 $750
 $800
 $850
 $900
 $950

 $1,000
 $1,050
 $1,100
 $1,150

FY2009 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017

T
h

o
u

s
a

n
d

s

BuildingPermit Revenues



October 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 9 

Water Consumption to Purchases Analysis: 
This has not been updated as the October water consumption information was not provided to the Village in 
time for this report.  This will be updated and provided to the Board on Monday, November 14th. 
 
Because of the lag in water billings to water purchased as the Village only bills 1/3rd of the community each 
month, a comparison of water purchased for the six month period of January‐June to water billed from April‐
September matches more closely allowing for a better analysis of the unbilled water ratio.  Water billed from 
April‐September 2016 represents 73% of the purchases from January‐June 2016. For the same periods in 2015, 
water billed represents 68% of water purchased. This leaves an unbilled and unaccounted for amount of 27% 
in 2016 compared to 32% in 2015. Part of this unbilled percentage is due to the fact that it takes the meter 
reader about 3 weeks to finish reading the entire monthly billing area.  This means that residents in the same 
billing month can have reading dates that range from the 20th of a month to the about the 10th of the 
subsequent month making billing comparisons even more complex. 
 
Special Revenue, Capital Projects, and Debt Service Funds: 
The revenues and expenditures for these funds are consistent with their specified purpose.  The IMRF and FICA 
funds expenditures are financed by property tax revenues.  The Motor Fuel Tax Fund (MFT) receives 
allotments each month from the state to be used exclusively for roadway improvements.  In FY17 and FY16 all 
road improvements are expensed in the General Fund.  The Redevelopment Fund budget of $250k is for the 
Moffett Road box culvert improvement project.  
 



 
 

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

  
Agenda Item: 9a 

  

Subject: 
APPOINTMENT TO VARIOUS ADVISORY BOARDS AND 
COMMISSIONS 

  
Action Requested: APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT (Voice Vote) 
  
Originated By: VILLAGE PRESIDENT 
  
Referred To:  VILLAGE BOARD 

 
Summary of Background and Reason for Request: 
 
Subject to the consent of the Board of Trustees, the Village President appoints members to the 
Village’s various advisory Boards and Commissions.  Recently, Stephen Rappin resigned from the 
Architectural Board of Review (“ABR”) creating a vacancy on the Commission.  Village President 
O’Hara recommends the appointment of Julie Wehmeyer to fill the available position.  If the proposed 
appointment is approved, Ms. Wehmeyer’s term will expire on April 30, 2018. 
 
Village President’s Recommendation:  Approval of Appointment. 
 
Date Referred to Village Board: 11/14/2016 
 
 
 
 



 
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
    

                               Agenda Item: 11 

 
Subject: 

 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO HUNTER 
FITNESS AND NUTRITION, INC. TO OPERATE A PHYSICAL FITNESS 
FACILITY AT 37 SHERWOOD TERRACE, UNITS 132-133 IN THE 
VILLAGE’S L-1 LIGHT INDUSTRY DISTRICT 

 
Action Requested: 

 
SECOND READING APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE (Roll Call) 

 
Originated By: 

 
HUNTER FITNESS AND NUTRITION, INC. 

 
Referred To:  

 
JOINT PLAN COMMISSION AND ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request:   
On September 20, 2016 the Village received a complete zoning application from Hunter Fitness and 
Nutrition, Inc. (Petitioner) requesting a Special Use Permit (SUP) to operate a physical fitness facility at 
37 Sherwood Terrace, Units 132-133 (Property).  The Petitioner will offer physical fitness services in 
small groups (8 to 16 people) and offer personal training, specialty training, and special classes (boot 
camps, seniors, etc.).  At the conclusion of the public hearing on October 19th the Plan Commission and 
Zoning Board of Appeals (PCZBA) unanimously recommended the Village Board approve the request for 
a SUP to allow the Petitioner to operate a physical fitness facility at the Property pursuant to operations 
outlined in the zoning application.  
 
Earlier this year the Village Board approved an amendment to the Zoning Code allowing physical fitness 
facilities as a special use in the L-1 Zoning District and granted a SUPs to Vlad’s Gym, a personal trainer 
operating at 910 Sherwood Drive, as well as Lyft Health and Fitness at 960 North Shore Drive.  

 
The Village Board approved first reading of the ordinance at its meeting on October 24, 2016.  Village Staff 
will be available at the meeting to answer questions from the Board.  
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

1. Ordinance Granting the Petitioner a SUP to Operate a Physical Fitness Facility at the Property; 
and  

2. PCZBA Staff Report (with attachments) Dated October 14, 2016. 
 
PCZBA’s Recommendation:  Approval of the Ordinance.  
 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation: Consideration of Second Reading of the Ordinance.  

 
Date Referred to Village Board: 11/14/2016 



 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-__ 
 
 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
TO HUNTER FITNESS AND NUTRITION, INC. TO  

OPERATE A PHYSICAL FITNESS FACILITY 
AT 37 SHERWOOD TERRACE, UNITS 132-133 

IN THE VILLAGE’S L-1 LIGHT INDUSTRY DISTRICT 
 

 
Passed by the Board of Trustees,  ________________, 2016 

Printed and Published,  __________________, 2016 
 
 
 
 

Printed and Published in Pamphlet Form 
by Authority of the 

President and Board of Trustees 

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I hereby certify that this document 
was properly published on the date 
stated above. 
 
 
 
      
Village Clerk 

cweatherall
Typewritten Text

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



ORDINANCE NO. 2016-__ 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
TO HUNTER FITNESS AND NUTRITION, INC. TO  

OPERATE A PHYSICAL FITNESS FACILITY 
AT 37 SHERWOOD TERRACE, UNITS 132-133 

IN THE VILLAGE’S L-1 LIGHT INDUSTRY DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, Hunter Fitness and Nutrition, Inc. ("Applicant") has applied for a 
special use permit pursuant to Section 10-4-2E of the Lake Bluff Zoning Regulations to allow for 
the operation of a physical fitness facility (“Facility”) at 37 Sherwood Terrace, Units 132-133, 
Lake Bluff, Illinois (“Premises”), which Premises is located in the Village’s L-1 Light Industry 
District and is legally described on Exhibit A attached to this Ordinance ("Subject Property"); 
and, 

WHEREAS, following a public hearing, the Lake Bluff Joint Plan Commission and 
Zoning Board of Appeals  (“PCZBA”) recommended that the Village Board grant a special use 
permit for operation of the Facility in the Premises (“Special Use Permit”); and, 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees have determined that it would 
be in the best interest of the Village to grant the requested special use permit in accordance 
with, and subject to, the conditions, restrictions, and provisions of this Ordinance.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows:  

Section 1. Recitals.  

The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance as findings of the 
President and Board of Trustees.  

Section 2. Public Hearing.  

A public hearing to consider the Applicant's request for the Special Use Permit 
was duly advertised on or before September 27, 2016 in The Lake County News-Sun, and was 
held by the PCZBA on October 19, 2016, on which date the PCZBA recommended that the 
Village Board grant the Special Use Permit subject to the conditions set forth in this Ordinance.  

Section 3. Special Use Permit. Subject to and contingent upon the 
conditions, restrictions, and provisions set forth in Section 4 of this Ordinance, a special use 
permit is hereby granted, pursuant to Section 10-4-2E of the Lake Bluff Zoning Regulations, to 
allow the operation of the Facility in the Premises on the Subject Property.  

Section 4. Conditions.  

The special use permit granted in Section 3 of this Ordinance is expressly 
subject to and contingent on each of the following conditions, restrictions, and provisions: 

A. Compliance with Application.  The Facility must be operated in 
substantial accordance with the Applicant’s application for a special use permit and 
accompanying documents, attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit B (“Application”).  



-2- 

B. Compliance with Applicable Law.  In addition to the other specific 
requirements of this Ordinance, the Facility, and all of the operations and activities on and in the 
Premises and the Subject Property shall comply at all times with all applicable federal, state, 
and Village statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules, codes, and regulations.   

Section 5. Failure to Comply with Conditions.  

Upon failure or refusal of the Applicant to comply with any or all of the conditions, 
restrictions, or provisions of this Ordinance, the approval granted in Section 3 of this Ordinance 
will, at the sole discretion of the Village Board of Trustees, by ordinance duly adopted, be 
revoked and become null and void.  

Section 6. Binding Effect; Non-Transferability.  

The privileges, obligations, and provisions of each and every section and 
provision of this Ordinance are for the sole benefit of and bind the Applicant, unless otherwise 
explicitly set forth in this Ordinance.  Nothing in this Ordinance will be deemed to allow this 
Ordinance to be transferred to any person or entity other than the Applicant without a new 
application for approval.  

Section 7. Effective Date.  

A. This Ordinance will be effective only upon the occurrence of all of the 
following events: 

1. Passage by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Lake Bluff in the 
manner required by law; 

2. Publication in pamphlet form in the manner required by law; and 

3. The filing by the Applicant with the Village Clerk, for recording in the 
Office of the Lake County Recorder of Deeds, of an unconditional 
agreement and consent to accept and abide by all of the terms, 
conditions, and limitations set forth in this Ordinance.  The unconditional 
agreement and consent must be executed by the Applicant.  The 
unconditional agreement and consent must be substantially in the form 
attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit C. 

B. In the event that the Applicant does not file with the Village Clerk the 
unconditional agreement and consent required by Paragraph 7.A.3 of this Ordinance within 60 
days after the date of final passage of this Ordinance, the Village Board of Trustees will have 
the right, in their sole discretion, to declare this Ordinance null and void and of no force or effect. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



-3- 

PASSED this ____ day of ____________, 2016, by vote of the Board of Trustees of the Village 
of Lake Bluff, as follows: 

AYES:  ( )  

NAYS:  ( )  

ABSTAIN: ( )  

ABSENT: ( )  

APPROVED this _____ day of ____________, 2016. 
 
 
             
       Village President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Village Clerk 
 
FIRST READING:  October 24, 2016 

SECOND READING:   

PASSED:    

APPROVED:    

PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM:   

 



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of the Subject Property 
 
LOT 6 IN UNIT 2 IN NORTH SHORE INDUSTRIAL AND RESEARCH CENTER, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF LOT “A” IN NORTH SHORE INDUSTRIAL AND RESEARCH CENTER, 
UNIT 1, LOCATED IN PARTS OF SECTIONS 19 AND 20, TOWNSHIP 44 NORTH, RANGE 12, 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT ON UNIT 2 OF 
NORTH SHORE INDUSTRIAL AND RESEARCH CENTER RECORDED APRIL 7, 1969 AS 
DOCUMENT 1416589, IN BOOK 46 OF PLATS, PAGE 43, IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.  
 
Commonly known as 37 Sherwood Terrace, Units #132-133, Lake Bluff, IL 
 
 



 2

EXHIBIT B 
 

Zoning Application 



 3

EXHIBIT C 
 

Unconditional Agreement and Consent 
 

Applicant’s Unconditional Agreement and Consent 

TO: The Village of Lake Bluff, Illinois (“ Village”): 
 

WHEREAS, Hunter Fitness and Nutrition, Inc. ("Applicant") has applied for a 
special use permit pursuant to Section 10-4-2E of the Lake Bluff Zoning Regulations to allow for 
the operation of a physical fitness facility (“Facility”) at 37 Sherwood Terrace, Units 132-133, 
Lake Bluff, Illinois (“Premises”), which property is located in the Village’s L-1 Light Industry 
District ("Subject Property"); and, 

WHEREAS, following a public hearing, the Lake Bluff Joint Plan Commission and 
Zoning Board of Appeals  (“PCZBA”)  recommended that the Village Board grant a special use 
permit for operation of the Facility in the Premises (“Special Use Permit”); and, 

  WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2016-__, adopted by the President and Board of 
Trustees of the Village of Lake Bluff on _______________, 2016, (“Ordinance”) grants the 
requested Special Use Permit for the Subject Property, subject to certain modifications, 
conditions, restrictions, and provisions; and, 
 
  WHEREAS, Subsection 7.B of the Ordinance provides, among other things, that 
the Ordinance will be of no force or effect unless and until the Applicant files with the Village 
Clerk, within 60 days following the passage of the Ordinance, its unconditional agreement and 
consent to accept and abide by each of the terms, conditions and limitations of the Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Applicant agrees and covenants as follows: 
 

1. The Applicant hereby unconditionally agrees to accept, consent to, and abide by 
all of the terms, conditions, restrictions, and provisions of the Ordinance. 

 
2. The Applicant acknowledges that public notices and hearings have been properly 

given and held with respect to the adoption of the Ordinance, has considered the 
possibility of the revocation provided for in the Ordinance, and agrees not to 
challenge any such revocation on the grounds of any procedural infirmity or a 
denial of any procedural right. 

 
3. The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the Village is not, and will not be, in 

any way, liable for any damages or injuries that may be sustained as a result of 
the Village’s issuance of any permits for the use of the Subject Property, 
including, without limitation, the Special Use Permit granted in the Ordinance, 
and that the Village’s issuance of any such permits does not, and will not, in any 
way, be deemed to insure the Applicant against damage or injury of any kind and 
at any time. 

 
4. The Applicant agrees to and does hereby hold harmless and indemnify the 

Village, the Village’s corporate authorities, and all Village elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, and attorneys, from any 
and all claims that may, at any time, be asserted against any of such parties in 



 4

connection with the operation and use of the Subject Property or the Village’s 
adoption of the Ordinance granting the Special Use Permit set forth in the 
Ordinance. 

 
Dated: ____________, 2016. 
 
ATTEST:       HUNTER FITNESS AND NUTRITION, INC. 
 
 
By:        By:      
 
 
        Its:___________________________ 

 
 



bstanick
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2



























































 
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

         Agenda Item: 12 
 
 
 
Subject: 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF ROCK SALT FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL FROM COMPASS MINERALS 
AMERICA INC THROUGH THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF CENTRAL 
MANAGEMENT SERVICE JOINT PURCHASING PROGRAM 

 
Action 
Requested: 

 
 
ADOPTION OF THE RESOLUTION (Roll Call Vote) 

 
Originated By: 

 
SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 
Referred To:  

 
VILLAGE BOARD 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request:   

The Village’s FY17 fiscal plan includes $48,587 for the purchase of rock salt for ice and snow control 
operations. Annually, the State of Illinois Office of Procurement conducts a joint rock salt bid for roadway 
maintenance agencies statewide. This year’s approved bid of $47.07 per ton was awarded to Compass 
Minerals of Overland Park, KS. At this price the Village will be able to purchase approximately 600 tons 
of rock salt.  The Village must commit to purchase 100% of the order and the supplier commits to provide 
120% of the ordered amount at the bid price should severe weather conditions arise. Last years price per 
ton was $67.41 with the Villages salt usage totaling 600 tons due to a below average winter.  The Village 
currently has 528 tons left over from last season.  With the purchase of 600 more tons the Village will have 
an adequate supply of rock salt for this winter, barring an exceptionally harsh season. 

Reports and Documents Attached: 
 
1.     A copy of the Resolution Approving the Purchase of Rock Salt; and 
2.     A copy of a letter dated September 15, 2016 from the State of Illinois Central Management Services. 
 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation: Adoption of the Resolution 
 
Date Referred to Village Board: 

 
11/14/2016 

 



 
RESOLUTION  NO.  2016-__ 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF ROCK SALT  

FOR THE PURPOSE OF SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL FROM  
COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA INC 

 
 WHEREAS, the approved Fiscal Year 2016-2018 Budget provides for the purchase of rock salt for 
the purpose of snow and ice control on Village streets; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, this rock salt may be purchased under the Joint Purchasing Program of the State of 
Illinois Office of Procurement pursuant to the Village Purchasing Policy and Procedures Manual thereby 
fulfilling the requirement for competitive bids in the Village’s Purchasing Policy and Procedures Manual: 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the state contract for rock salt was awarded to Compass Minerals America Inc., 
Overland Park, KS. The contract price of the rock salt, on a per ton basis, is $47.07; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Superintendent of Public Works and Director of Finance have reviewed the 
contract terms and specifications and concluded that it is in the best interest of the Village to purchase 
seven hundred (600) tons of rock salt at $47.07 per ton from Compass Minerals America Inc. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS as follows: 

 
Section 1. Recitals. 

 
The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as findings of the President and Board of 

Trustees.  
Section 2. Authorization to Purchase Rock Salt. 

 The Village Administrator is authorized and directed to execute and seal, on behalf of the 
Village, an Agreement to purchase six hundred (600) tons of rock salt at $47.07 per ton for a total of 
$28,242 from Compass Minerals America Inc., Overland Park, KS. 
 
PASSED this ___ day of November 2016, by vote of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Lake Bluff as 
follows:  
 
AYES:  ( )   
 
NAYS:  ( ) 
 
ABSENT: ( )   

  
APPROVED this ____ day of November, 2016. 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       Village President  
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Village Clerk 

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



I S

Eh,Eltlr'
Hofit

Dear Joirnt

Subject: 201 - ZQtl Roi:,k f:ialt,

In complleti
Illinois dlid
seasons. Wr;
participarnts ii

the f0 l6
'.20]il7

Salt season contra,ct
the supply-relaled issues

an ,ctTer lbr r n rcqrui

We again
applicatirirn r d roa{ruarr pri
program colst:

EnclosedL is ar

also

to secure R.oad iSalt at

ng agencies and

you:su'brnitted to us fbr

a\/e
our solici

l-tre infor:m inclucling purchase
submit yr:ur npqui contract vendor:

) 344-9330 Contact

The additionral pricp per tlrrr ln ha
chute
\l'as not provirled fdr by thli this sea$on's

You are responsible for issrri
may be pJlaced with thc: velldor vi

rwn purchase, order do
ephone, witth a written

Page I of3
I Srouth Sprirng Street,raltoflB 0 l

oln Rectt:tctl Poper

Bruce

NIAhIAGEIi

Conlrar;t lnrformation

remenl., tlr
erir:nced iin tlhLi
best av'ailabld

and gladty report the te was able.rlri
through the State's

CE;|

, A c

l t ' ()F (

fitinan,

ies in c,rder t0 ntinirnize
saf'ety of'the public.

_ / lPrice Jrer ton F.O.
:'s warehouse is not m

tal entitiies
t seasr)nns

purchnse of'u
lfnlent, c;m be

T'erm: Septem r 120[6 - *!i
FEIN Number: 8- I i047ili3lZ

dr:sdination, is
avainablerirr

sialt delivered in ; r4uippecl uri
fr nocli sah ontit contrrol !ed,crff,- loading

process.

to the
fax aonli

to ordler und att n1uctrt t;alt
lso, you mrustslnrtages tltis tvinter.

) derli''rery quantities or tiptres o1

r,iernor
II]ICES

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2



clvlsi res,env'os th'e ri ghrt to rm irt i ga tti: appl i cati on o l' liquiclat,e,d
\/endor, i:n tJre: evenrl oif r:rdersi ex,r:peding the maxirnunn pex.c

An agenr::y rrt,ay ord,er up tio :ltil.!,i) tlf thefir avrarded contr,act tor
arnd vendor shall deliver: vrithiin ?' jvorkir:rg-days afl:r:r receipt o
above th<::20|Yu tlhreshold :rhr.rlll haJre an extend,eci derriver tirne
each one-perc;entag*p,oint ahrve \he 20,% p;uidelime, For.exa
25.'% of therir awarded tot;,rl I ri)0 tc1n, deliver.y of th,e fir:st 20 h:r-l rro[;1r I r,ru lqn, dellver.y Ot the ttfSt 2
7 'workinlg-rlelys after: rer:e:i;rt of rlrdler, thr: remaining.5 lon
vrorking-rda;,rs after receiprt o ji 'orden.

fiom the trailerr befcrne leaving a clelivery point, il 'he 'v,endr:r w
ffleasures sh,tlrvn on rJe,liveny tiicketrs are correct. ll_ocal go
right to requrlre that rjeliveu.l/ llr:ucllli occar;ioniall,y be diirecterrJ trc
ttre deliverry p,oint as a,che,ck on ejelivererl truckloads.

I'age 2 of !I
l iOl Sitratton Officr; Br"rilcli.ng,40l South lSpring Sitreet, Sp

['rintu,{ on Ret;.v*clcil Pupcr

DIjPARTMET.JT' OF CH:hrr
l,4iiitiael M. Hofiiirrart, acilng-

consider,sd ias the first calerndiirn dtzty af the sn:ven day deiilvr:ry

I;f after severn workir:lg-da;rs o1f liq[.jridatedr darmages assesrsrnent
to dejliver, lcrcal g,ovu:mmerntall 'Lrnidshall have the nisht to tr:mn
road salt r:r ilb'rasivcs fioni arrlth,rlr sourc:e, or takr: erction cons
nee,ded to cr,)ntinue clailJr b'rrs'ilress;. Any and ill l additional crost
fi'crnn the ,r:riginal vend,or, iirr rnidilibn tr,: l;iquidaterl damages, tr

A.ll deiiverirtrsr 5[nll be,i]overrecl, vri th approverC weattrerlproo f
ensure thi:rt deliveny llerson inspr:r::ts tlie iinsicle o[, the ttaitrer

l, futlr,l,,lAtf F frl
reotor

or lOCt pe rccrrrl
) is nnet b,er

firnis,h nrrt
Y'ourr' ;Eo'venr:i

c'lf ordr:,r by phr
for ordLerri; p
rvork.ing,

7, iif 'a ven,:lor"il l
i ts shal l  havr,r  t

g*clay on the ur
p,tior l$ 9:0lllt ar

f tlher srev'en -dil'tr
Fcrllor;ving day

iod.

ag,er; irngrosir::d
ges or-rtlirreclll

ge rn ru]y gt 'v
ord,er, ()lranrl,i

onLe-rv orkin 1e ;
ple, if i lm agr::xr
t( 2{).2)/a.) shal I
'rl b,e d'elliv ered

the vendor hiu;
nate an ,0rcier nrr
stle,nl vurith rulbli
incrun:errJl nra1r,
parrticip;mt's ,l:

ls, ''fhe .',

that all rsalt il;r r
l l  ensurer al l  wr: i

ullritr; rerijel
scnle in the 'i,ri

field., tL 6il

nritll rci'

IJt'ucr': t,t,ll

){'1"

t l t i ; rn

ll:r tll II Llnl

It] ,enCl
1:20
runirt

miuil l ,
u/eBn

tt,nl arS

l l I lLi:l

l:l

l i v

t r

Ill

t [ . [

to

)ii;ll

afilix

'lyeipk:

rr nJ,ererd
y tttrr

)/ rc,rdeIS

uvithi,n
iitlLirrr ll2

i ll faril gclL
pr.ut.:lhasrr:
sil ltr: lv atl
rollectier:l

i : rct ion

slra l l
rZC;d

s; arxl
l ihB

. Covie,rnor

i[iL\,/llCES



Deliveries
wclod, tarpa
ntaterial is dl
onto the
the vendlor s
tssue a

In Decem
Illinois r:,ov
of 2017 rthr:
the total
the stocllpi
commt

Enhancerd

'fhe

enhanced
Mineralsr
vendor fi)r a'y

Their
ktrinerals
your order zui

llhe enh
product ;:rro

It isihoperd t|:h
If yoru ha'ye ar
contact nie al:

IUana
in tlhe i

Iton$

R.TMENTOF

I M. Hoffman, Acting

shal l  have, in place
fbr ttre northenn resi

7 rin place r;tockpile(r;) i
of the litate. At our
ilers are in sufficient

ith the users of this

ent S erv:icr,'s surveyed
ttion fbr bid, and did

in ttris enhanced
I to facilitat,e prtential

ilatrle joint purr:hasing
trirct up-charge p,er ton

itenr. ntact Sean n-iierz at 913-

ition;al pre-trea,tment
rnnance, with

beneficial to vou irr
inlg the rock salt co

Sincer,ely,

Wayne Ilsfuly, CPPB,
Bureau of fitlategic

Page 3 of3
I South Sprirng fitreet,

fircation connpliant I
consistent with the

ger at,irar dlecl fcrrl. a[]
to enl;u;re thiat lihes;
to ths srtockpitrt:s a

k tsal t  2016-2Ct ' l ; '

raDlrrty rn

is nnhde av
rica Inrc C

on Re;:t.cled Paper

L t\{All.iAi

mud, nlck;s,
the event {:ha,t

gn mattf:r
and returned

r:rf repl
tracrt pricer.

ile(r;) I
olf thr: Sitalle,
or near lo illii
iscretiortr, we:

itier:i, iurd,

ve im c)
option rn

t aw;rrdled
zurd lvo ukJ

44-9t3,30t fcrr

aprpnoverd
COITioSIlOll

r,rtilizatiion ol'
ract, please



Jt
.1Oil\rf:'
tllY' I fr-

0pt!-()u
Nttlicel

L

lt tvuut to. trllrrlJclpate in the
nnd rcnqrl {hr: tlprofiact infon:

!fT0:i
Illluorts rrttrirt of' I
Centrnl Mu l;rJilnt clES
itlt0ll \;|/ur., u lrl

8?'
su

iillliinrohi.

' : l0 l ,Ci .2t i r l7

br;liow to

3-*-1*

r f lo__b

4l0l $i. Spnll lg

(:i FiBqrurlstTI0r\
rase Cl6mfirltttrrlnt

;{ip rilrgfiicld,
Xra:n (217)
finrrnirtA,dd

fio'['hrln]k Yoru.
iliuil.*Epi on r naliling ti sr.

L',rirrr, lu.!n*;,.11 *,
; l

(;io,vemrnent [-ftiit:

lvlaining Addr:cJri;

Cliql ,' Strite / ZiFr:
j ;  l i

1 3 ,  i r
L'ount.,! 

' d I

t ;()ontact Personi

1,'eL:lrhorre Nuillber:
; )

Irax lrluniber: ;
: i

Corr{nct Ernail: i

- - ai,jilil'
('fl.ilil'fi;i5;ii,i;,4i

L.

- tritlr t'llstbl,e-A" or

Vcndor ,r\t 'Iirnrr;r

(, tt,c
11., c^'[,Lrc*

r c f

r;tr.rlerd rrbovt: (cl
rigqulfcrnleut
rrequil e,rrre rrt

45, ,  anr l4 l !1 l l l4 l
pri'Ce citrur,ot incr
'/c,ar" ,llleasr:r C

9r-9-lJii:i."..Lt,
:such il::mrii

']lu-'[

li'i

l+ ' ' * {
. \-li"!

-ibs: }31q
I  o l

i\

OPTIONT i  i 8o . tn , .m t
tiiltoN, :i_y; roo-q,6 ni

I

I l . o , c k  S n l t ,  $ u l L :
I i

lidsl ffi;v'nTis;Fiis!;ffi oNL?
\"ouLr quhntity rpay nbt 'excerrd morr
last sr:is*n's p{ice 6[rLer'Ienns & ri
llote_ Current $!tj&1lq!' i t'-rJl"f .l

I ceirlifu lhat iiinrls aio iiva j.lublc .[or
gov,et:rfdental iuiq, aFd nol, Frrr pery,

lrr. addrdon, I agrer: tb abir:l,c by thc
I rf!-.t--'-'**
| .f ! \/' '^. *L

liltal
pnrr:hasr: rcrq I
purphasr: rcq

',tF

4 * r * { * * *.r/ r * pnrtirrfpnul_, e Onlv

lc to l lav'e thr

;iuf tmjEisilBru,Htl.srr"r

UT

Ilithcr''(Tn blc.=/{" Albovc 'sTsblcJB'" I

"R-El,iElWo Ilc4rulncnren

Ai'tn'nY'**-
! L!yJ.!{L0gS_l

undel Cuuh'r
hun ajil0%i inc
'o:nditjions ,cf C
!li[l! {"--J,::!

prJ,,,nu* or r]
u.rf of urny' of

sD 40il t143, 4r018144, 40lE
of last srda$ou'slquantiiry,. anc
:r 'nill cehiain. lfre same a,s lar

- --*,d" .l1T:1! qg:uf9ll

,?Siiufr lErulffi '.,s-ril:-qrg'qi
I l l o c l q  S n i r ;  B r u l l , r

F'lease ngte yorfr P'urchase Com

Slate'.S{tLlCln',BIDS" fi

IB-E
o n R

a.'\,a,



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

          
Agenda Item:  13 

 
Subject: 

 
A RESOLUTION ESTIMATING THE AMOUNT OF THE  
ANNUAL AGGREGATE 2016 PROPERTY TAX LEVY 

 
Action Requested: 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF RESOLUTION (Voice Vote) 

 
Originated By: 

 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

 
Referred To:  

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request: 
 
Annually the Village is statutorily required to estimate the funds to be raised from taxes on 
real property in the Village prior to the adoption of the levy.  This is an estimate and does 
not limit the Board’s ability to levy a different amount provided it is in compliance with 
the Truth in Taxation Law and all applicable notice and hearing provisions. 
 
The Finance Committee, at their September 19th and 26th meetings, reviewed the 2016 levy 
projections and recommended approval of an aggregate property tax levy of $4,130,447 or 
1.25% more than the 2015 property tax extension. The Village share of the property tax 
levy is $3,233,329 and the Library Board’s levy request is $897,118.  This levy comprises 
new construction equalized assessed valuation (EAV) estimated at $3 million and a CPI 
factor of 0.7%. The total EAV is projected to increase by 6% to $553 million. This 
estimated levy is in compliance with the amount allowed under the Property Tax Limitation 
Act.   
 
The first reading of the 2016 tax levy ordinance and the public hearing will be held on 
Monday, November 28th. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 
1. A copy of the Resolution; and 
2. A memorandum from Finance Director Susan Griffin dated 11/4/2016  including: 
 Attachment A - Calculation of maximum levy and 
 Attachment B - Comparison of current levy to the past four property tax levies by 

fund. 
 

Village Finance Committee’s Recommendation: Approval of Resolution  
 
 
Date Referred to Village Board: 11/14/2016 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016- 

 

A RESOLUTION ESTIMATING THE AMOUNT OF THE ANNUAL 

 AGGREGATE 2016 PROPERTY TAX LEVY 

 

 WHEREAS, the Truth In Taxation Act, 35 ILCS 200/18-60 (2010), provides that the 

corporate authorities of each taxing district, including the Village of Lake Bluff, shall 

determine the amount of money, exclusive of any portion of that levy attributable to the cost 

of conducting an election required by general election law, estimated to be necessary to be 

raised by taxation for the current year upon the taxable property in the taxing district. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT 

AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF, LAKE 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 

 

 Section 1. Estimation of Village Portion of the 2016  Property Tax Levy. 

 

 The President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Lake Bluff hereby estimate that 

$3,233,329, (Three million, two hundred thirty-three thousand, three hundred twenty-nine 

dollars and 00/100) exclusive of amounts to be levied which are attributable to the costs of 

conducting elections required by the general election law, shall be raised by means of ad 

valorem property taxes for 2016 for Village general and special purpose levies. The President 

and Board of Trustees hereby find that this amount is not more than 105 percent of the amount, 

exclusive of election costs, which has been extended upon the levy of the preceding year. 

 

Section 2. Estimation of Library Portion of the 2016 Property Tax Levy. 

 

 The Board of Trustees of the Lake Bluff Public Library hereby estimate that $897,118, 

(Eight hundred ninety-seven thousand, one hundred, eighteen dollars and 00/100), exclusive 

of amounts to be levied which are attributable to the costs of conducting elections required by 

the general election law, shall be raised by means of ad valorem property taxes for 2016 for 

Library general and special purpose levies.  The President and Board of Trustees hereby find 

that this amount is not more than 105 percent of the amount, exclusive of election costs, which 

has been extended upon the levy of the preceding year. 

 

Section 3. Estimation of 2016 Aggregate Property Tax Levy. 

 

 The President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Lake Bluff hereby estimate that 

$4,130,447, (Four million, one hundred thirty thousand, four hundred forty-seven dollars and 

00/100), exclusive of amounts to be levied which are attributable to the costs of conducting 

elections required by the general election law, shall be raised by means of ad valorem property 

taxes for 2016 for the Village of Lake Bluff and the Lake Bluff Public Library.  The President 

and Board of Trustees hereby find that this amount is not more than 105 percent of the amount, 

exclusive of election costs, which has been extended upon the levy of the preceding year. 

sgriffin
Typewritten Text

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT #1



2016 Property Tax Levy Resolution 2016- 

 

 

Section 4. Effective Date. 

 

 This Resolution shall be effective following passage by the Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Lake Bluff in the manner required by law. 

 

PASSED this 14th day of November, 2016, by vote of the Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Lake Bluff, as follows: 

 

AYES: ( )    

 

NAYS: ( )  

 

ABSENT: ( )     

 

 

APPROVED this 14th day of November, 2016. 

 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Village President 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Village Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO:  Village President and Board of Trustees 

  R. Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 

 

FROM:  Susan Griffin, Finance Director 

CC:  Marlene Scheibl, Assistant Finance Director 

 

DATE:  November 4, 2016 

 

SUBJECT: 2016 Property Tax Levy Estimate  

 

Summary 

 

The Finance Committee, at their September 19th and 26th meetings, reviewed the 2016 levy 

calculations and agreed to recommend the Village share of the levy of $3,233,329 which is 1.25% 

greater than the prior year levy and is within the estimated tax cap maximum (PTELL).  The 

Library Board requested a 2016 property tax levy of $897,118 which is within the estimated 

PTELL.  The aggregate levy estimated under the PTELL is $4,130,447. 

 
Levy Calculation and Estimates – Attachment A  

 

Attachment A shows the calculation of the tax levy based on the maximum non-referendum 

tax levy which takes into account the CPI factor and estimated new construction. 

 

The CPI factor is 0.7% down from 0.8% last year, the EAV for 2016 is projected at 106% of the 

2015 amount and new construction is estimated at $3 million based on preliminary data from 

the Lake County Assessor and Village estimates. Some of this new construction is attributed to 

a portion of the Target development because the businesses opened in late July 2015. 

 

The estimated maximum levy amount under the PTELL is $4,130,447 (including the Library 

portion) representing a 1.25% increase. While the Village is not legally limited by the tax caps 

since becoming home rule, the Village Board passed a resolution pledging to not increase the 

aggregate levy in excess of the amount that is allowed under the PTELL.   

 

Part III, of Attachment A details the new dollars received, the percentage increase, and the tax 

rate changes compared to the 2015 extension. Under the estimated levy, the Village would 

realize $39,890 and the Library $11,068 for a total of $50,958 new dollars while the blended 

tax rate would decrease from $.782 to $.747 per $100 of EAV.   

 

On the next page is a table showing the last 9 years’ total (Village and Library) tax extension and 

the current estimated levy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT #2



2016 Property Tax Levy Information  November 4, 2016  

Page 2 

 

Tax 

Collection 

Yr 

Levy 

Year  

Tax 

Extension  

New 

Dollars 

Equalized 

Assessed 

Value 

Blended 

Tax Rate 

Inc/(Dec) 

in EAV 

Inc/(Dec) 

in Levy 

2017-18 1 2016 4,130,447 $50,958 553,141,786 .747 6.0%  1.25% 

2016-17 2015 4,079,489 $55,876 521,831,574 .782 8.8% 1.39% 

2015-16 2014 4,023,613 $76,386 479,518,737 .839 (1.0)% 1.94% 

2014-15 2013 3,947,227 $96,685 484,263,512 .815 (4.4)% 2.51% 

2013-14 2012 3,850,542 $126,832 506,500,163 .673 (8.1)% 3.41% 

2012-13 2011 3,723,710 $80,146 551,254,954 .678 (5.9)% 2.20% 

2011-12 2010 3,643,564 $147,321 585,899,834 .624 (7.1)% 4.21% 

2010-11 2009 3,496,243 $49,014 630,953,018 .556 (2.6)% 1.42% 

2009-10  2008 3,447,229 $194,015 647,740,985 .532 3.2% 5.96% 

2008-09 2007 3,253,214 $166,276 627,765,760 .540 9.8% 5.39% 

 

Special Levies and Levy Breakdown by Fund/Purpose – Attachments B & C   

 

Attachment B shows the breakdown of the levy by fund/purpose with a comparison to 

previous years.  The shaded column shows the effect of the 2015 levy on the Village funds. Of 

the total new dollars projected under this allocation scenario, the General fund would realize 

$5,800 decrease over the 2015 extension due to the allocation of revenue to the Pension Funds.  

 

The Police Pension Board met on August 11th to discuss the Fund’s levy requirement and is 

requesting a levy consistent with the actuary’s recommendation. The 2016 actuarial valuation, 

prepared by the actuarial firm of MWM Consulting, calculates a recommended minimum Village 

contribution of $672,315 up 3.4% from the contribution last year of $650,103. The actuarial 

recommended levy is based on the Entry Age Normal funding method and more conservative 

assumptions than the minimum levy required by statute. The recommended amount is designed 

to reduce the unfunded liability each year, to produce a levy that is about 51.5% of covered 

payroll, and to achieve 95% funding by 2040 (90% funding is required by law.) The plan is 51.89% 

funded as of May 1, 2016 down from 58.10% at May 1, 2015. The complete actuarial valuation 

report was provided to the Finance Committee in the September 19th packet. 

 

The Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund and Social Security (FICA) levy allocations are based on a 

projection of the costs for FY2017-18 and for the FICA levy, less usage of some of the excess 

fund balance reserves. The IMRF fund balance declined last year from $214k to $23k with the 

expenditure of funds for a required one-time accelerated payment. The Village is mandated to 

contribute 10.19% (2016 rate) of salaries for IMRF covered employees directly to IMRF. The 

Village pays 6.2% of salaries up to the annual maximum and 1.45% on total salaries for FICA and 

Medicare income taxes. The FICA fund balance declined from $176k to $139k due to an 

intentional use of excess reserves. 

 

Library Property Tax Levy  

 

The Library Board has submitted its levy request of $897,118 which represents a 1.25% increase 

over the 2015 tax extension and is the amount under the PTELL.  

 

 

 

 

                                            
1 Year 2016 Levy, EAV, rate and percentage changes are estimates. 

sgriffin
Typewritten Text

sgriffin
Cross-Out

sgriffin
Cross-Out



2016 Property Tax Levy Information  November 4, 2016  

Page 3 

 

Abatement of both the 2011 Refunding Bonds and 2012 Refunding Bonds 

 

As has been past practice, this levy does not include an amount for these bond payments. This 

debt requires an abatement ordinance to request that the County NOT levy this tax because 

Ordinances 2011-19 and 2012-13 are filed with the County. These ordinances require the 

County tax extension office to levy the annual bond payment amount unless the Village abates 

the levy each year. This abatement ordinance will be submitted to the Board for approval in 

conjunction with the levy ordinance. 

 

General Information and Tax Levy Legal Adoption Requirements  

 

The Village is required by Statute to prepare a resolution estimating the property tax levy which 

will be on the November 14th agenda. The first reading of the Levy Ordinance, Debt Abatement 

Ordinance, and Public Hearing will be held on November 28th with final adoption of the levy on 

December 12th.  The levy must be filed with the County Clerk by the last Tuesday in December.   

   

Truth-In-Taxation Law Compliance Is Not Required 

 

The truth in taxation law requires that the corporate authorities comply with specific 

publication and public hearing requirements if the aggregate tax levy is estimated to be more 

than 105% of the amount extended the prior year.  At this time, the Village and the Library 

levies are in compliance with the tax cap amount, therefore, compliance with the provisions of 

this law is not required.  However, the Village will hold a public hearing on the budget at the 

November 28th Board meeting in accordance with past practice.  The public hearing notice will 

be posted on the Village Hall bulletin board, the website, and printed in the November 19th 

edition of the Pioneer Lake. 

 



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 31-Oct-16

2016 PROPERTY TAX LEVY PRELIMINARY LEVY

I.  Calculation of 2016 Estimated EAV & Historical Data

2016

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Estimate

Village EAV 527,046,786 484,191,545 463,295,419 458,754,118 500,638,069 $530,676,353

Sanctuary EAV 24,208,168 22,308,618 20,968,093 20,764,619 21,193,805 $22,465,433

  Total Village EAV $551,254,954 $506,500,163 $484,263,512 $479,518,737 $521,831,874 $553,141,786

Shield's Township EAV $2,060,162,776 $1,926,914,557 $1,781,099,584 $1,690,026,662 $1,733,267,357 $1,819,930,725

Village % of Township 26.76% 26.29% 27.19% 28.37% 30.11% 30.39%

Village New Construction $3,106,704 $967,961 $2,877,031 $1,378,812 $2,937,369 $3,000,000

Township New Construct $6,154,906

Property Tax Extension $3,573,377 $3,694,381 $3,789,757 $3,862,737 $3,926,394

Sanctuary Extension $150,333 $156,160 $157,470 $160,876 $153,095

   Total Village Extension $3,723,710 $3,850,542 $3,947,227 $4,023,613 $4,079,489 $0

Tax Rate 0.678 0.763 0.818 0.842 0.784 0.000

Sanctuary Rate 0.621 0.700 0.751 0.775 0.722 0.000

II.  Calculation of Maximum Tax Levy

A. Tax Cap Calculation - PTELL MAXIMUM YEAR 2016 ESTIMATE

CPI Factor 0.7% 0.70%

STEP 1:  Prior year Extension less debt * CPI factor

2015 Extension $4,079,489 $4,108,045

$550,141,786

0.7467 PTELL Limiting Rate

STEP 4:  Rate * Total EAV = Total levy (less debt)

$4,130,447 MAXIMUM 1.249% % Increase

STEP 5: Total Maximum Levy $4,130,447 1.249% % Increase

STEP 6:  Add G.O. Debt Payments ABATED $0

STEP 7:  Total Maximum Levy & Tax Rate $4,130,447 0.7467

STEP 2: Tax Rate Maximum=New Extension (less debt) 

Divided by Estimated EAV less New Construction

STEP 3: Maximum Tax Rate with CPI (Step 1 divided by Step 

2)

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2A



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 31-Oct-16

2016 PROPERTY TAX LEVY PRELIMINARY LEVY

III.  Comparison 2015 & 2016 Levy - VILLAGE 

A. PTELL Maximum 2015 Tax Ext 2016 Tax Max 2016 Estimate $ Change % Change

Levy w/o Police Pension $2,543,336 $2,561,014 $2,561,014 $17,678 0.695%

Police Pension Levy $650,103 $672,315 $672,315 $22,212 3.417%

Total Village Levy $3,193,439 $3,233,329 $3,233,329 $39,890 1.249%

IV.  Library Levy Estimates

2015 Extension 2016 Max Tax 2016 Estimate $ Increase % Change

Amount Allowed per Tax Cap $886,050 $897,118 $897,118 $11,068 1.249%

TOTAL LEVY $4,079,489 $4,130,447 $4,130,447 $50,958 1.249%



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF

COMPARISON OF PROPERTY TAX LEVIES BY FUND 2012-2016

PROPERTY PROPERTY PROPERTY PROPERTY PROPERTY

TAX TAX TAX TAX TAX $ % % of Total

FUND TITLE 2012 EXT 2013 EXT 2014 EXT 2015 EXT 2016 EXT Levy

(FY13-14) (FY14-15) (FY15-16) (FY16-17) (FY17-18)

01 General Fund $2,087,921 $2,160,295 $2,169,085 $2,195,629 $2,189,829 ($5,800) -0.26% 49.53%

General Fund Total $2,087,921 $2,160,295 $2,169,085 $2,195,629 $2,189,829 ($5,800) -0.26% 49.53%

07 IL Municipal Retirement 172,210 150,122 150,003 152,004 175,000 $22,996 15.13% 7.47%

14 Social Security Fund 197,535 179,177 190,004 195,703 196,000 $297 0.15% 8.56%

16 Liability Insurance Fund 0 0 0 0 0 $0 N/A 0.00%

62 Police Pension Fund 557,150 605,329 640,603 650,103 672,500 $22,397 3.45% 11.68%

Subtotal - Village $3,014,816 $3,094,923 $3,149,695 $3,193,439 $3,233,329 $39,890 1.25% 77.24%

80 Library Fund 763,094 777,654 797,398 807,600 817,118 $9,518 1.18% 20.90%

80 Library IMRF 40,704 41,925 42,975 44,050 45,000 $950 2.16% 1.07%

80 Library FICA 31,927 32,725 33,545 34,400 35,000 $600 1.74% 0.78%

Subtotal - Library $835,725 $852,304 $873,918 $886,050 $897,118 $11,068 1.25% 22.76%

TOTAL EXTENSION/LEVY $3,850,541 $3,947,227 $4,023,613 $4,079,489 $4,130,447 $50,958 1.25% 100.00%

Residential property represents 90.6% of the total EAV of the Village. 

Commercial, industrial, farm and railroad property combined EAV represents 9.4%.

2015 Extension to 2016 Levy

Change Increase/(Decrease)

 $100
 $200
 $300
 $400
 $500
 $600
 $700
 $800
 $900

 $1,000
 $1,100
 $1,200
 $1,300
 $1,400
 $1,500
 $1,600
 $1,700
 $1,800
 $1,900
 $2,000
 $2,100
 $2,200
 $2,300
 $2,400

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

s Property Tax Extensions by Fund

General IMRF FICA Police Pension Library

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2B




